
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

This meeting will be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via 
the Council’s website: charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees 
 
Please also note that under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting.  The use of any 
images or sound recordings is not under the Council’s control. 
 

 
 

To: Councillors Bolton (Vice-Chair), S. Bradshaw, Charles, Parsons, Boldrin and Taylor  
Mr Angell (Chair) 

(For attention) 
 

All other members of the Council 
(For information) 

 
You are requested to attend the meeting of the Audit Committee to be held in Virtual 
Meeting - Zoom on Wednesday, 25th November 2020 at 6.00 pm for the following 
business. 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Southfields 
Loughborough 
 
17th November 2020 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

2.   MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

3 - 8 

 The Committee is asked to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
of the Committee held on 22nd September 2020. 

 
3.   DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTEREST 

 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/karenw/AppData/local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/NU3M8P7G/charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees


 

4.   QUESTIONS UNDER OTHER COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 12.8 
 

 

 No questions were submitted. 
 

5.   EXTERNAL AUDIT - 2019/20 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

 

 A report of the External Auditors. 
 
Report to follow. 

 
6.   ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2019-20 

 
 

 A report of the Head of Financial Services. 
 
Report to follow. 

 
7.   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 AND REVIEW OF 

THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

9 - 18 

 A report of the Head of Strategic Support. 
 

8.   WORK PROGRAMME 
 

19 - 22 

 Report of the Head of Strategic Support. 
 

MEETING DATES 
22nd December 2020 
9th February 2021 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

1 
 

Audit Committee - 22nd September 2020 
Published – 29th September 2020  

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
22ND SEPTEMBER 2020 

 
PRESENT:  The Chair (B. Angell) 

The Vice Chair (Councillor Bolton) 
 Councillors S. Bradshaw, Charles, Parsons, 

Boldrin and Taylor 
  

 
 Audit Manager 

Senior Auditor 
Internal Auditor 
Strategic Director of Corporate Services 
Strategic Director of Commercialisation  
Head of Strategic Support 
Head of Finance Services 
Information Development Manager  

 Democratic Services Officer (NA) 
Democratic Services Officer (NC) 
 

Due to technical issues the meeting was chaired by Councillor Bolton. 
 
The Chair stated that the meeting would be recorded and the sound recording 
subsequently made available via the Council’s website.  She also advised that, under 
the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, other people may film, 
record, tweet or blog from this meeting, and the use of any such images or sound 
recordings was not under the Council’s control. 
 

13. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR FOR 2020/21  
 
Councillor Bolton volunteered to be the Audit Committee Vice-Chair for 2020/21. The 
proposal was put to the vote by the committee.  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Bolton be appointed Vice-chair of the Committee for the 
Council year 2020/21. 
 

14. MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 6th June 2020 were confirmed 
as a correct record and signed. 
 

15. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTEREST  
 
No disclosures were made. 
 

16. QUESTIONS UNDER OTHER COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 12.8  
 
No questions had been submitted. 
 

17. PROGRESS OF EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 

2 
 

Audit Committee - 22nd September 2020 
Published – 29th September 2020  

 

 
A report of the External Auditors had been received by the Committee prior to the 
meeting. 
 
Unfortunately, no one from the External Auditors was able to attend the meeting so 
the Committee was advised that if they had any questions to contact the Auditors 
outside of the meeting. 
 

18. CAPITAL STRATEGY UPDATE  
 
A report of the Head of Finance Services was submitted to the Committee presenting 
the Council’s Capital Strategy for 2020/21 (item 07 on the agenda filed with these 
minutes). 
 
The Strategic Director for Corporate Services, The Strategic Director for Commercial 
Development and the Head of Finance Services attended the meeting to assist with 
consideration of the item. 
 
The Committee asked questions of the officers’ present and voiced their concerns that 
there was an increase in borrowing which created increased risk for the Council. The 
officers advised that the money was being used for investment in the Council’s 
commercialisation plan, property investment portfolio and town deal investment.  
 
RESOLVED that having scrutinised the report and asked questions of the officers 
present the Committee felt it was appropriate to recommend the report to Cabinet. 
 
Reason 
 
Having scrutinised the report the Committee felt there were no issues they wished to 
raise to the Cabinet.  
 
Note: following the meeting the Head of Finance Services confirmed that in relation to 
Appendix B in the Treasury Management (pg32) the correct dates for the investment 
with Slough Borough Council was 02/4/2020-01/4/2021. 
 
At this point in the meeting Mr Angell resumed chairing duties. 
 

19. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 
A report of the Head of Strategic Support was submitted summarising the progress 
against audits for the 2020/21 Audit Plan (item 8 on the agenda filed with these 
minutes).  
 
The Head of Strategic Support and the Audit Manager attended the meeting to assist 
the Committee with the consideration of this item. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 
Reason 
 

Page 4



 

 

3 
 

Audit Committee - 22nd September 2020 
Published – 29th September 2020  

 

To acknowledge the Committee’s consideration of this item. 
 

20. 2019/20 MEMBER ALLOWANCES CLAIMED  
 
A report of the Head of Strategic Support was submitted to the Committee to consider 
the amounts claimed by members of the Borough Council and co-opted members 
under the Council’s Member’s Allowances Scheme for 2019/20.  (item 9 on the 
agenda filed with these minutes).  
 
The Head of Strategic Support   attended the meeting to assist with consideration of 
the item.  
 
RESOLVED that the report be approved.  
 
Reason 
 
The Committee was content with the report and had no specific areas of concern or 
actions that it wished to include as part of its decision. 
 

21. WHISTLE BLOWING, ANTI-FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY POLICY  
 
A report of the Head of Strategic Support was submitted to provide the Committee 
with information regarding the operation of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and 
Whistle-blowing Policy during 2019/20 (item 10 on the agenda filed with these 
minutes).  
 
The Head of Strategic Support attended the meeting to assist the Committee with the 
consideration of this item.  
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 
Reason 
 
The Committee was content with the report and had no specific areas of concern or 
actions that it wished to include as part of its decision. 
 

22. RISK MANAGEMENT (RISK REGISTER) UPDATE  
 
A report of the Head of Strategic Support was submitted providing the Committee with 
details of the Strategic Risk Register and Covid Risk Register produced. (item 11 on 
the agenda filed with these minutes).  
 
The Head of Strategic Support attended the meeting to assist the Committee with the 
consideration of this item.  
 
The Committee was advised that there was a weekly monitoring meeting in response 
to Covid which looked at existing and new risks to the organisation. Any new risks that 
were identified were added to the risk register and the register was reviewed on a 
regular basis. The risk register was also due to be reviewed by the Corporate 
Leadership Team at their next meeting.  

Page 5



 

 

4 
 

Audit Committee - 22nd September 2020 
Published – 29th September 2020  

 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 
Reason  
 
The Committee was content with the report and had no specific areas of concern or 
actions that it wished to include as part of its decision. 
 

23. COUNCIL'S USE OF REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (RIPA)  
 
A report of the Head of Strategic Support was submitted providing the Committee with 
a summary of the Council’s use of RIPA powers (item 12 on the agenda included with 
these minutes).  
 
The Head of Strategic Support attended the meeting to assist the Committee with the 
consideration of this item.  
 
RESOLVED that it be noted that there has been no use made of RIPA powers by the 
Council for the period from 1st May to 31st August 2020.  
 
Reason 
 
To enable the Committee to comply with the request from Cabinet that the Audit 
Committee assumes responsibility for receiving a quarterly report on the use of RIPA, 
and to report to Cabinet any concerns arising from those reports that may indicate that 
the use of RIPA is not consistent with the Policy or that Policy may not be fit for 
purpose. 
 

24. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
A report of the Head of Strategic Support was submitted to enable the Committee to 
consider its work programme (item 13 on the agenda filed with these minutes). 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee proceeds on the basis of the following work 
programme, which incorporates all decisions made at this meeting: 
 

ISSUE MEETING 
 

Internal Audit Business  Ongoing 

2019/20 Statement of Accounts 
 

25th November 2020 
(Accounts Meeting) 
 
Annually 

2019/20 Annual Governance 
Statement and Review of the Code 
of Corporate Governance 

25th November 2020 
(Accounts Meeting) 
 
Annually 

Internal Audit Plan – Progress 
 

December 2020 
 
Quarterly 

Page 6



 

 

5 
 

Audit Committee - 22nd September 2020 
Published – 29th September 2020  

 

Risk Management 
(Risk Register) 
 

December 2020 
 
Quarterly - detailed report every six 
months, exception report quarters in-
between. 

Council’s Use of Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)  

December 2020 
 
Quarterly 

Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Review 

December 2020 
 
Annually 

2020/21 Treasury Management 
Statement, Annual Investment 
Strategy and MRP Strategy 

February 2021 
 
Annually 

2021/22 Internal Audit Plan February 2021 
 
Annually 

Annual IT Health Check (Code of 
Connection) 
Confidential Report 

June 2021 
 

Annually 

2020/21 Annual Internal Audit 
Report 

June 2021 
 
Annually 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

June 2021 
 
Annually (for approval) 

2020/21 Members’ Allowances 
Claimed 

June 2021 
 
Annually 

Whistle Blowing and Anti-fraud, 
Corruption and Bribery 

June 2021 
 
Annually 

Environmental Audits – Report on 
Outcomes 

June 2021 
 
Annually 
 
Note: Six month exception report where 
identified actions are not implemented by 
the target date. 

Page 7



 

 

6 
 

Audit Committee - 22nd September 2020 
Published – 29th September 2020  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NOTES: 
 
1. No reference may be made to these minutes at the next Council meeting unless 

notice to that effect is given to the Democratic Services Manager by five members 
of the Council by noon on the fifth working day following publication of these 
minutes. 
 

2. These minutes are subject to confirmation as a correct record at the next meeting 
of the Audit Committee. 

 

2020/21 Treasury Management 
Outturn  

June 2021 
 
Annually  

  

Future of Local Public Audit Report on Government proposals 
considered 5th July 2011. 
Further report once final 
regulations/guidelines are known. 
Note: 
Appointing Your External Auditor briefing 
note considered June 2016. 

. Policy for Engagement of External 
Auditors for non-audit work 
 

Considered March 2013. 
 
Review policy - date to be agreed 

External Audit Business  Ongoing 

2019/20 Annual Governance Report 
 
 

25th November 2020 
(Accounts Meeting) 
 
Annually 

2019/20 Annual Audit Letter July 2021 
 
Annually 

External Audit Progress Report and 
Technical Update 

December 2020 
 
Quarterly 

Certification of Claims and Returns  
(2020/21 Audit) 
 

February 2021 
 
Annually 

2021/22 External Audit Plan 
 

February 2021 
 
Annually 

Page 8



 

AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25TH NOVEMBER 2020 
  

Report of the Head of Strategic Support 
 

Part A 
 

ITEM 7   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 AND REVIEW 
OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

 
Purpose of Report 
 
To present the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2019/20 for approval, and 
to report the results of the annual review of the Council’s Code of Corporate 
Governance.  
 
Recommendations 
 
1. To approve the Annual Governance Statement (as included in the 

statement of accounts). 
  
2. To approve the Code of Corporate Governance (attached as an Appendix 

to this report).  
 
Reasons 
 
1. So that the Annual Governance Statement can be finalised and signed by 

the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive in accordance with the 
required timescales. 

 
2. To ensure that the Code of Corporate Governance is kept up to date and 

complies with best practice.   
 
Policy Justification and Previous Decisions  
 
The production of an AGS is a statutory requirement.  
 
As set out in the Constitution, the Audit Committee has responsibility for 
considering the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing 
necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice. 
 
Implementation Timetable Including Future Decisions 
 
If approved by this Committee, the AGS will be signed by the Leader of the 
Council and the Chief Executive and will form part of the published statement 
of accounts. 
  

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

 
Report Implications 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None. 
 
Risk Management 
 
There are no risks arising from this report. 
 
 
Background Papers: Delivering good governance in Local Government 

Framework 2016 Edition (CIPFA / SOLACE): 
publicly available  

 
Officer to Contact:  Adrian Ward 

Head of Strategic Support 
(01509) 634573 

    adrian.ward@charnwood.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

Part B 
 
Background 
 
1. An Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a requisite part of the 

published statement of accounts. Although forming part of the statement 
of accounts, it is good practice to consider the AGS separately to the 
accounts. 

 
2. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and the 

Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) issued joint 
updated guidance on corporate governance in 2016. The guidance sets 
out updated requirements for AGS, which includes a requirement that: 

 
‘The annual governance statement should provide a meaningful but brief 
communication regarding the review of governance that has taken place, 
including the role of the governance structures involved (such as the 
authority, the audit and other committees). It should be high level, 
strategic, and written in an open and readable style’. 
 

3. The guidance also sets out six sections which must be included within the 
statement, which in summary are: 

• An acknowledgement of responsibility for a sound system of 
governance, 

• Reference to and assessment of the effectiveness of the key 
elements of the governance framework, 

• An opinion on the level of assurance that the governance 
arrangements can provide, 

• An action plan to deal with significant governance issues, 

• Reference to the resolution of issues from the previous year, 

• A conclusion and commitment to monitoring implementation.   
 
4. The AGS, which has been prepared in accordance with the revised 

guidance, is included in the statement of accounts being considered by 
the committee elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.      

 
5. The Council’s governance framework is summarised in the annex to the 

AGS and has been in place throughout 2019/20. This committee plays 
a key role in overseeing the operation of the framework, including: 

• receiving quarterly update reports on the strategic risk register, and 
operational risk registers by exception, 

• approving the annual Internal Audit plan, 

• receiving quarterly updates on the work of Internal Audit, 

• receiving the annual Internal Audit report, 

• receiving reports from the external auditors, 

• annually reviewing the Code of Corporate Governance and approving 
amendments to it.  

 

Page 11



 

 

6. This ongoing work of the committee culminates in the consideration of 
the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
7. The AGS sets out one significant issue which has arisen from the review 

of effectiveness and the proposals for addressing it, which is to review 
and monitor the effectiveness of the new shared internal audit service, 
particularly in light of the impact of the ongoing coronavirus pandemic.  

 
8. The CIPFA/SOLACE guidance outlines 7 core principles for good 

governance, with a number of supporting sub- principles. The core 
principles are: 

 
A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values, and respecting the rule of law. 
 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement. 

 
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 

and environmental benefits. 
 

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes. 

 
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its 

leadership and the individuals within it.  
 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal 
control and strong public financial management. 

 
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective accountability.  
 
9. As stated in the AGS, the Code of Corporate Governance has been 

reviewed against the revised Framework, and the Code is attached as 
Appendix A to this report for the Committee to consider. No changes 
have been identified as being required. 

 
10. The Code sets out the Council’s commitment to the principles and sub-

principles within the new Framework, and also summarises the Council’s 
governance framework arrangements against each of the principles and 
sub-principles.  

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix: Code of Corporate Governance 

Page 12



CHARNWOOOD BOROUGH COUNCIL – CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Charnwood Borough Council is fully committed to the principles of good governance, as set out in the ‘delivering good governance in Local 
Government Framework 2016 Edition’ (the Framework) produced by CIPFA and SOLACE. 
 
The Council has adopted the core principles and sub-principles as set out in the Framework and which are set out below, together with a summary 
of how the Council’s governance framework seeks to support and achieve them.     
 
The Committee is responsible for overseeing the Council’s governance framework and arrangements, including reviewing this Code on an annual 
basis to ensure it remains relevant, up to date, and in line with best practice.     
 

CORE PRINCIPLES (SHOWN IN BOLD) SUB-PRINCIPLES (SHOWN IN BOLD), AND HOW CHARNWOOD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ACHIEVES THEM WITHIN ITS GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating 
strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law 
 
Charnwood Borough Council is accountable 
not only for how much we spend, but also for 
how we use the resources under our 
stewardship. This includes accountability for 
outputs, both positive and negative, and for 
the outcomes we have achieved. In addition, 
we have an overarching responsibility to serve 
the public interest in adhering to the 
requirements of legislation and government 
policies. It is essential that, as a whole, we can 
demonstrate the appropriateness of all our 
actions across all activities and have 
mechanisms in place to encourage and 
enforce adherence to ethical values and to 
respect the rule of law.         

Behaving with integrity 

• Codes of Conduct are in place for Members and for Officers 

• The Member Code of Conduct was approved by full Council, and incorporates the Nolan 
Principles 

• There is a Member Conduct Committee which has oversight of the Member Code of 
Conduct, and which is responsible for ensuring that members behave with integrity 

• The Member Code of Conduct specifies the requirements for members who have 
interests in matters under consideration to disclose them and to act appropriately to 
minimise potential conflicts of interest 

 
Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values   

• There is a process in place to deal with complaints that members many have breached 
the Code of Conduct   

• There is an agreed and publicised process for people to raise concerns in confidence 
about ethics and other issues (whistle-blowing policy)    
 

Respecting the rule of law 

• All recommendations for decisions by members are subject to legal consideration and 
clearance to ensure that they are lawful and procedurally correct 

• Suitable statutory officer arrangements are in place (head of paid service, monitoring 
officer, and s151 officer), together with deputies where required 

P
age 13

nickyc
Text Box
APPENDIX



• The monitoring officer reports any illegal actions or findings of maladministration to 
members in accordance with statutory requirements 

• ‘Whistle-blowing’ arrangements are in place for anyone who wishes to report concerns 
about corruption, misuse of power, or other serious concerns    

   

B. Ensuring openness and 
comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Local government is run for the public good, 
and therefore Charnwood Borough Council 
ensures openness in our activities. Clear, 
trusted channels of communication and 
consultation are used to engage effectively 
with all groups of stakeholders, such as 
individual citizens and service users, as well 
as institutional stakeholders. 

Openness 

• The Council has adopted a Communications Strategy 

• Reports to members with recommendations for decisions are supported by 
comprehensive publicly available reports and background papers, unless there is a 
justifiable reason why any information should be treated as exempt (ie. kept confidential)    

• Meetings at which members debate and make decisions are open to the public, unless 
there is a justifiable reason why the information being considered should be treated as 
exempt (ie. members of the public and press excluded) 

 
Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders 

• The Council has identified its key partners and has a strategy in place to ensure that we 
work with them effectively where required to deliver services    

   
Engaging comprehensively with individual citizens and service effectively 

• The Council’s Communications Strategy sets out when and how we will consult with 
citizens and service users 

• Consultation methods are targeted at specific groups where required, and are 
undertaken using a wide range of access channels   

   

C. Defining outcomes in terms of 
sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits 
 
The long-term nature and impact of many of 
Charnwood Borough Council’s 
responsibilities mean that it should define 
and plan outcomes and that these should be 
sustainable. Decisions should further the 
Council’s purpose, contribute to intended 
benefits and outcomes, and remain within the 

Defining outcomes 

• The Council has a four year Corporate Plan setting out its vision and intended outcomes 
for the Borough 

• Each year the Council approved an annual Business Plan setting out in detail how the 
vision within the Corporate Plan will be delivered, including objectives and relevant 
performance indicators 

• Each year the  Council updates its medium term financial strategy, which is designed as 
a financial planning tool to ensure that the outcomes within the Corporate Plan and 
Business Plan can be delivered  within the resources that will be available  

P
age 14



limits of authority and resources. Input from 
all groups of stakeholders, including citizens, 
service users, and institutional stakeholders, 
is vital to the success of this process and in 
balancing competing demands when 
determining priorities for the finite resources 
available.      
 

• The Council operates a strategic risk register which identifies the high level strategic risks 
that could impact on the ability of the Council to deliver its key services and outcomes    

 
Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

• The Council considers economic, social and environmental impacts when making 
decisions, including undertaking and publishing equality impact assessments to ensure 
that fair access to services is achieved  

D. Determining the interventions 
necessary to optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes 
 
Charnwood Borough Council achieves its 
intended outcomes by providing a mixture of 
legal, regulatory, and practical interventions 
(courses of action). Determining the right mix 
of these courses of action is a critically 
important strategic choice that the Council 
has to make to ensure intended outcomes 
are achieved. We have robust decision-
making mechanisms to ensure that our 
defined outcomes can be achieved in a way 
that provides the best trade-off between the 
various types of resource inputs while still 
enabling effective and efficient operations. 
Decisions made are reviewed frequently to 
ensure that achievement of outcomes is 
optimised.     
 

Determining interventions 

• Councillors making decisions receive detailed reports from officers with 
recommendations which are supported by an objective and rigorous analysis of options, 
including the financial and resource implications and the associated risks 

• Where appropriate consultation is undertaken with citizens and stakeholders, and their 
feedback is taken into account when making decisions 

 
Planning interventions 

• The Council has a schedule setting out the periods covered by all its key strategies and 
policies and the dates on which they are due to be reviewed and updated 

• Where appropriate, during the development and updating of policies and strategies key 
performance indicators and risks are identified  

• The medium term financial strategy is reviewed and updated annually to ensure that 
realistic estimates are available for a sustainable funding strategy       

 
Optimising achievement of intended outcomes 

• The medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities, 
affordability and other resource constraints 

  

E. Developing the Council’s capacity, 
including the capability of its leadership 
and the individuals within it.  
 
Charnwood Borough Council needs 
appropriate structures and leadership, as well 

Developing the Council’s capacity 

• Heads of Service are responsible for reviewing operations, performance and use of 
assets within their service areas on an ongoing basis to ensure their continuing 
effectiveness 

P
age 15



as people with the right skills, appropriate 
qualifications and mindset, to operate 
efficiently and effectively and achieve 
intended outcomes within the specified 
periods. The Council must ensure  that it has 
both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate 
and to make certain that there are policies in 
place to guarantee that its management ha 
the operational capacity for the organisation 
as a whole. Because both individuals and the 
environment in which the Council operates 
will change over time, there will be  a 
continuous need to develop our capacity as 
well as the skills and experience of individual 
staff members. Leadership in local 
government is strengthened by participation 
of people with many different types of  
backgrounds, reflecting the structure and 
diversity of communities.      

• The Council’s Scrutiny Committees have responsibility for reviewing the Council’s 
services through tools such as benchmarking in order to ensure that outcomes are being 
achieved efficiently and effectively    

• The Council has a People Strategy which is designed to ensure its workforce is 
developed and maintained to face the current and future needs of the Council  

 
Developing the capability of the Council’s leadership and other individuals  

• The Constitution sets out the decisions that are delegated to officers and those which are 
reserved for collective decision making by the relevant committee  

• The Leader and the Chief Executive  have a clear and shared understanding of their 
respective leadership roles and responsibilities 

• Officers have regular personal reviews which include an assessment of their ongoing 
training and development needs, and there is also a corporate training programme to 
ensure that corporate development needs are identified and delivered 

• There is a Member Development Member Reference Group of Councillors who oversee 
the member development programme, which provides regular training and development 
opportunities for all Councillors 

• The Council has achieved the East Midlands Member Development Charter, 
demonstrating its commitment to the importance of training and development for its 
Councillors       

• Officers have access to a free and confidential counselling service  
 
 

F. Managing risks and performance 
through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management 
 
Local government needs to ensure that the 
organisations and governance structures that 
it oversees have implemented, and can 
sustain, an effective performance 
management system that facilitates effective 
and efficient delivery of planned services. 
Risk management and internal control are 
important and integral parts of a performance 

Managing risk 

• There is a risk assessment framework for all decisions taken by Councillors and by 
officers under delegated authority, and any risks identified and recorded, assessed and 
mitigating actions are set out where appropriate 

• The Council has a two tier risk management system, consisting of a high level strategic 
risk register which is approved annually by Cabinet and monitored by the Audit 
Committee, and operational risk registers which are included within service team plans 

 
 
Managing performance 

P
age 16



management system and are crucial to the 
achievement of outcomes. Risk should be 
considered and addressed as part of all 
decision making activities. 
A strong system of financial management is 
essential for the implementation of policies 
and the achievement of intended outcomes, 
as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic 
allocation of resources, efficient service 
delivery and accountability. 
It is also essential that a culture and structure 
for scrutiny are in place as a key part of 
accountable decision making, policy making 
and review. A positive working culture that 
accepts, promotes and encourages 
constructive challenge is critical to successful 
scrutiny and successful service delivery. 
Importantly, this culture does not happen 
automatically, it requires repeated public 
commitment from those in authority.    

• Scrutiny Committees have responsibility for overseeing the Council’s performance in 
delivering its agreed outcomes and targets for key per performance indicators, and for 
scrutinising policies and strategies as they are developed and before they are subject to 
decisions to implement them    

• The Scrutiny Commission has responsibility for pre-decision scrutiny of Cabinet reports 

• Quarterly performance reports monitoring delivery of the annual Business Plan are 
produced and are considered by the Senior Management Team and by the relevant 
Scrutiny Committees    

 
 
Robust internal control 

• The Audit Committee has responsibility for regularly reviewing and monitoring the 
Strategic Risk Register, overseeing the work of external and internal audit, and for 
reviewing the adequacy of the internal control system   

• The Audit Committee is independent of Cabinet, and is chaired by an independent 
person who is not an elected Councillor 

• The Council has an in-house internal audit team which is staffed by suitably qualified and 
experienced officers, and which conducts a regular review of risks and internal controls 
within an annual audit plan 

 
Managing data 

• The Council has designated the Strategic Director of Corporate Services as its 
Information Security Manager, ensuring that responsibility for the management of data 
and information security rests at senior management level 

• The Council has appointed a Data Protection and Information Security Officer   

• Information and data protection security breaches and incidents are monitored on a 
quarterly basis by the Corporate Management Team   

 
Strong public financial management 

• All decisions taken by Councillors and by officers under delegated powers are subject to 
financial review and clearance, with the financial implications of the decisions being 
recorded 

• There is a robust system of monitoring and reporting of both revenue and capital budgets 
and plans, including consideration by the Council’s scrutiny function  

P
age 17



 

G. Implementing good practices in 
transparency, reporting, and audit to 
deliver effective accountability 
 
Accountability is about ensuring that those 
making decisions and delivering services are 
answerable for them. Effective accountability 
is concerned not only with reporting on 
actions completed, but also ensuring that 
stakeholders are able to understand and 
respond as the Council plans and carries out 
its activities in a transparent manner. Both 
external and internal audit contribute to 
effective accountability.    

Implementing good practice in transparency 

• Reports are made available to the public and other stakeholders via the Council’s 
website, unless they are classed as exempt 

• The Council has a dedicated page on its website where open data and all information 
required under the local government data transparency code is readily available   

 
Implementing good practices in reporting 

• The Council publishes an overall Annual Report each year setting out progress against 
achieving objectives and key performance measures 

• The Council also produces and makes available a number of other reports on an annual 
basis, including the statement of accounts and the annual governance statement, and an 
report on the work and achievements of the scrutiny function   

 
Assurance and effective accountability 

• The Audit Committee has responsibility for ensuring the any recommendations for 
corrective action made by external audit are acted on, and also for monitoring the 
implementation of recommendations made by internal audit 

• The Council welcomes external challenge and reviews, and has achieved several 
external accreditations including ‘Customer Service Excellence’ and ‘Investors in People’ 

 

 

Version History 
Compiled: August 2017 
Updated: July 2019 (to reflect changes in the Scruinty structure and the revised risk management framework) 
Reviewed: July 2019 (no amendments required) 
 

P
age 18



 
 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 25TH NOVEMBER 2020 

 
Report of the Head of Strategic Support 

 
ITEM 8   WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
To enable the Committee to consider its Work Programme. 
 
Action Requested 
 
that the Committee considers any items that it wishes to add to or amend, in its 
work programme for future meetings; 
 
Reason 
 
To enable the Committee to identify future items of business and enable planning 
for future meetings to be undertaken, for example preparing reports and 
arranging for the attendance of officers and/or others at meetings. 
 
Background 
 
The Work Programme agreed at the last meeting of the Committee is attached 
as an appendix for the consideration of the Committee.   
 
 
Officer to contact: Nicky Conway 
   Democratic Services Officer 

(01509) 634787 
   Nicky.conway@charnwood.gov.uk 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Nicky.conway@charnwood.gov.uk


 
APPENDIX 

 

ISSUE MEETING 
 

2019/20 Statement of Accounts 
 

25 November 2020 
(Accounts Meeting) 
 
Annually 

2019/20 Annual Governance 
Statement and Review of the Code of 
Corporate Governance 

25 November 2020 
(Accounts Meeting) 
 
Annually 

Internal Audit Plan – Progress 
 

22nd December 2020 
 
Quarterly 

Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Review 

22nd December 2020 
 
Annually 

Risk Management 
(Risk Register) 
Internal Audit Business 

22nd December 2020 
 
Quarterly - detailed report every six 
months, exception report quarters in-
between. 

Risk register COVID-19 
Internal Audit Business 

To be scheduled 
 

Council’s Use of Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)  
Internal Audit Business 

22nd December 2020 
 
Quarterly 

2020/21 Treasury Management 
Statement, Annual Investment 
Strategy and MRP Strategy 

February 2021 
 
Annually 

2021/22 Internal Audit Plan 
Internal Audit Business 

February 2021 
 
Annually 

2020/21 Annual Audit Letter 
Internal Audit Business 

February 2021 
 
Annually 

2021/22 External Audit Plan 
External Audit Business 

February 2021 
 
Annually 

Capital Strategy 2021-22 February 2021 
 
Annually 

Internal Audit Plan – Progress 
 

February 2021 
 

2019/20 Annual Governance Report 
External Audit Business 
 

25 November 2020 
(Accounts Meeting) 
 
Annually 

External Audit Progress Report and 
Technical Update 
External Audit Business 

22nd December 2020 
 
Quarterly 

Page 20



Quarterly 

Risk Management 
(Risk Register) 
Internal Audit Business 

February 2021 
 
Quarterly - detailed report every six 
months, exception report quarters in-
between. 

Council’s Use of Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)  
Internal Audit Business 

February 2021 
 
Quarterly 

External Audit Progress Report and 
Technical Update 
External Audit Business 

February 2021 
 
Quarterly 

2019/20 Annual Internal Audit Report 
Internal Audit Business 

June 2021 
 
Annually 

2019/20 Review of the effectiveness 
of Internal Audit (Feedback from 
Panel) 
Internal Audit Business 

June 2021 
 
Annually 

Internal Audit Charter 
Internal Audit Business 

June 2021 
 
Annually (for approval) 

2019/20 Members’ Allowances 
Claimed 

June 2021 
 
Annually 

Whistle Blowing and Anti-fraud, 
Corruption and Bribery 

June 2021 
 
Annually 

Environmental Audits – Report on 
Outcomes 
Internal Audit Business 

June 2021 
 
Annually 
 
Note: Six month exception report where 
identified actions are not implemented by the 
target date. 

2020/21 Treasury Management 
Outturn  

June 2021 
 
Annually  

Internal Audit Plan – Progress 
 

June 2021 
 
Quarterly 

Risk Management 
(Risk Register) 
Internal Audit Business 

June 2021 
 
Quarterly - detailed report every six 
months, exception report quarters in-
between. 

Council’s Use of Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)  
Internal Audit Business 

June 2021 
 
Quarterly 

External Audit Progress Report and 
Technical Update 
External Audit Business 

June 2021 
 
Quarterly 

2020/21 Statement of Accounts 
  

July 2021 
(Accounts Meeting) Page 21



 

  
Annually 
 

2020/21 Annual Governance 
Statement and Review of the Code of 
Corporate Governance 

July 2021 
(Accounts Meeting) 
 
Annually 
 

2020/21 Annual Governance Report 
External Audit Business 
 

July 2021 
(Accounts Meeting) 
 
Annually 
 

Environmental Audits Outcomes – 
Progress update 

September 2021 
 

Annual IT Health Check (Code of 
Connection) 
Confidential Report 

September 2021 
 
Annually 

Internal Audit Plan – Progress 
 

September 2021 
 
Quarterly 

Risk Management 
(Risk Register) 
Internal Audit Business 

September 2021 
 
Quarterly - detailed report every six 
months, exception report quarters in-
between. 

Council’s Use of Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)  
Internal Audit Business 

September 2021 
 
Quarterly 

External Audit Progress Report and 
Technical Update 
External Audit Business 

September 2021 
 
Quarterly 

Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Review 

December 2021 
 
Annually 

Future of Local Public Audit Report on Government proposals 
considered 5th July 2011. 
Further report once final 
regulations/guidelines are known. 
Note: 
Appointing Your External Auditor briefing 
note considered June 2016. 

. Policy for Engagement of External 
Auditors for non-audit work 
 

Considered March 2013. 
 
Review policy - date to be agreed 

Page 22


	Agenda
	2 Minutes from the previous meeting
	7 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 and Review of the Code of Corporate Governance
	8 Work programme



